
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

CABINET MEMBER SIGNING 
 

Thursday, 4th December, 2025, 11.45 am - Alexandra House, Station 
Road, N22 7TY (watch the live meeting here, watch the recording 
here) 
 
Councillors: Sarah Williams 
 

 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for 
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone 
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask 
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to 
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting 
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or 
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating 
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral 
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or 
reported on. By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, 
you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images 
and sound recordings.  
 
The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NzIyMDc1ODMtNThjMS00YzEyLTk1MjAtZmYxOTczYTY0ZDE2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2238264997-136c-45db-987b-4d7b45393805%22%7d
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PL_DSjoFpWl8tSPZp3XSVAEhv-gWr-6Vzd


 

pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

4. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of Urgent Business. 
(Late items of Urgent Business will be considered under the agenda item 
where they appear). 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / QUESTIONS   
 

6. VARIATION OF CONTRACTS FOR THE DELIVERY OF FIRE SAFETY 
WORKS  (PAGES 1 - 6) 
 

7. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
Item 8 is likely to be subject to a motion to exclude the press and public be 
from the meeting as it contains exempt information as defined in Section 100a 
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1985); paras 3 and 5, namely information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information) and information in respect of which a claim to legal 
professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 

8. EXEMPT VARIATION OF CONTRACTS FOR THE DELIVERY OF FIRE 
SAFETY WORKS  (PAGES 7 - 10) 
 
 

 
Richard Plummer Committees Manager 
Tel – 020 8489 4319 
Email: richard.plummer@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Fiona Alderman 
Director of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
George Meehan House, 294 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8JZ 
 
Wednesday, 26 November 2025 
 



 
  

Report for:  Cabinet member for Housing & Planning and Deputy Leader. 
 
Item number: To be added by the Committee Section 
 
Title: Variation of contracts for the delivery of fire safety works. 

 
Report  
authorised by :  Sara Sutton - Corporate Director Adults Housing & Health 
 
Lead Officer:  Claude Pascal – Fire and Asbestos Manager  
                                 claude.pascal@haringey.gov.uk 
                                 07980316794 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Key Decision 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1. To vary existing contracts with three suppliers for the continued delivery of fire 

safety works, pending the implementation of a long-term contract to be procured. 
 

1.2. In order for the council to meet its statutory obligation under the Fire Safety 
Order (as amended) 2005, the Building Safety Act 2022, and the Fire Safety Act 
2021 as well as the requirements of the Housing Acts 1994,2004 and the Health 
and Safety at Work Act 1974, the council needs to undertake fire safety works in 
residential buildings, as identified through fire risk assessments, to comply with 
current regulations to ensure the safety of those living and visiting them.   

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
         NA. 
 
 

3. Recommendations  
 

3.1 For the Cabinet Member for Housing & Planning and Deputy Leader, pursuant 
to Contract Standing Orders 18.03.3 & 2.01(d) to approve variation of 
contracts to three suppliers as per the table below 
 

Supplier Original Contract Value Variation  

A £499,999 £833,333 (167%) 

B £499,999  £833,333 (167%) 

C £499,999  £833,333 (167%) 

 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 6



3.2 Each of the 3 existing contracts are to be varied by 167% due to the urgent 
need for continued delivery of works by existing contractors, following 
unavoidable delays in procuring a longer-term contract. 
  

 
4.      Reasons for decision  

 
4.1 It is essential to maintain continuity to complete actions from the fire risk 

assessments, as stopping this for any period, will increase the number of 
actions, as we continue to carry out fire risk assessments in accordance with 
our statutory obligations and will further increase risk of them becoming 
overdue and putting resident safety at risk. 

 
4.2 The Council aims to ensure that fire risk assessment actions are completed in 

a timely manner in line with our policy objectives for Fire & Building Safety. 
Varying these contracts will enable actions to continue to be completed whilst 
procurement of a long-term contract is undertaken, that will support and 
compliment delivery of actions by in-house teams. 

 
4.3 External contractors are essential to this delivery programme due to the 

flexibility and amount of resource required as well as the level of skill and 
certification required to demonstrate competency.    

 
4.4 The variation will also ensure that remediation works can be delivered at the 

existing rates agreed with the contractors, during the original procurement in 
2024/25. As market rates will undoubtedly have increased since this time, this 
helps to ensure value for money through these variations.  

 
4.5 Haringey has also given a commitment to the regulator For Social Housing to 

reduce high-risk overdue actions and to ensure they are completed in a timely 
manner. Failure to vary the current contracts would put that commitment at 
risk of failure. 
 

 
5. Alternative options considered 

 
5.1  Do nothing  

 
5.2 This option has been rejected because this would mean an accumulation of 

actions from the fire risk assessment remain unallocated without an 
appropriate facility to complete works in a compliant manner, at the required 
scale to meet the overarching strategic objectives, to reduce actions and meet 
our commitments to the Regulator for Social Housing.  
 

5.3  Utilise the DLO to deliver works  
 

5.4 This option has been rejected as the DLO is already under significant 
pressure to deliver the Responsive Repairs Service. This option is not a viable 
proposition for the either the short or medium to long term planning of the 

Page 2



Council, due to the lack of competencies and resources to meet the required 
standards.  
 

5.5  Procure new contracts without first varying existing contracts 
 
This option is being progressed but the variation under this report allows 
sufficient time to complete the procurement. However, it is not possible to 
maintain delivery if existing contracts are not varied and we rely wholly on a 
new contract being put in place.   

 
5.6 Utilise an external framework to make a direct award to a separate 

contractor. 
  

This option has been rejected by our Strategic Procurement due to the need 
to maintain internal control over the procurement process. 
 

6. Background information 
 

6.1. The three contracts were put in place in 2024 as part of a wider award to 5 
contractors aimed at reducing the overdue actions from the fire risk 
assessments, as reported to the Regulator for Social Housing via Haringey’s 
Voluntary Undertaking.  

 
6.2. The spend for each contractor has been set at a contract value of £499,999. 

These contract values will be exhausted in November 2025 and require 
variation to match the current approved budget that will ensure that service 
delivery is not impacted.   

 
6.3. The 1-year contract period commenced in March 2025 and is in place until 

March 2026, allowing a continuation of current contractual arrangements and 
rates. 

 
6.4. To meet its obligation under the Fire Safety Order the Council carries out a 

programme of regular fire risk assessments to its blocks with communal 
areas utilised as a means of escape. Deficiencies may occur because of 
maintenance, general deterioration, ASB or resident activities, both 
legitimate and illegitimate. The FRAs identify such issues and ensure they 
are recorded and managed appropriately through our digital compliance 
system. 

 
6.5. The council previously self-reported to the Regulator for Social Housing that 

it had high priority actions that were overdue and awarded 5 contracts to 
enable the council to close all remaining actions that it had committed to the 
regulator to close in May 2025 in its voluntary undertaking. These actions 
are on track to be completed by the agreed timeline, however if we are 
unable to vary existing contracts there is a risk of a significant new build-up 
of actions, creating a new backlog. 

 
6.6. The existing 5 contracts were put in place to cover the clearance of the 

historic backlog as reported to the regulator. However, there is insufficient 

Page 3



value to allow them to pick up new actions that will become out of date 
without this variation. This variation will allow for the delivery of new and 
existing Fire Safety Actions for the remainder of this financial year, within 
available budgets. 

 
6.7. The intention has been to procure and award a long-term contract to ensure 

that new actions are managed and completed within the target timescales. 
However, due to internal resource pressures, leading to the need to engage 
external support, this procurement process has taken longer than was 
anticipated. This means that we require cover during the on-going 
procurement process to ensure actions are completed accordingly. 

 
6.8. Strategic procurement have been engaged in the decision to vary existing 

contracts, and they have also liaised with our legal team to advise on the 
most appropriate option for an interim solution ahead of providing statutory 
comments. 

 
6.9. Finance have been consulted to ensure existing revenue and capital 

provision has been made for fire risk assessments which will support the 
delivery of this contract variation until such time as a new long-term contract 
has been put in place. 

 
6.10. The contracts are issued on a call off basis and the council will only be 

charged for works completed.    
 

 
7. Contribution to the Corporate Delivery Plan 2022-2024 High level Strategic 

outcomes? 
 

7.1. Improving the Council’s capacity and procedures to deal with fire safety risks 
supports the delivery of the ‘Homes for the future’ theme of the Corporate 
Delivery Plan where everyone should have a safe, sustainable, stable, and 
affordable home and aims to improve the quality of our social housing and 
landlord services. 

 
8. Carbon and Climate Change 

 
8.1. This decision does not affect the carbon and climate change agenda and 

remains as originally stated in the initial award reports. 
 
 

9. Statutory Officers comments (Director of Finance (procurement), Head of 
Legal and Governance, Equalities) 

 
 

9.1  Finance  
 

9.1.1 The revenue portion (40%) will be covered by the Residential Buildings Fire 
Risk budget, while the capital portion (60%) will be funded through the Fire 
Safety capital programmes and reflected in the latest financial projections. 

Page 4



This decision leads to a net saving to the service budget, as shown in Period 
4 accounts. Ongoing monitoring will ensure expenditure remains within 
approved limits and any variances are addressed promptly. 
See also the exempt report. 

 
9.2  Procurement 

 
9.2.1 Strategic Procurement note that this report relates to the approval to vary the 

approved spend with three contractors due to fire risk assessment backlog 
 

9.2.2 The purpose of this variation has arisen due to the increased number of fire 
safety works.  
 

9.2.3 The approved spend will lead to continuity of service by reducing the number 
of backlogs whilst the service work with Strategic Procurement to put in place 
long term contract.  
 

9.2.4 Having a long-term contract in place with a higher spend value will avoid 
frequent variations to the contract. 
 

9.2.5 SP note that the total contract value across the 3 suppliers including the 
variation cost is below the threshold for works required under Public Contacts 
Regulation 2015 (PCR 2015). The requirement under the PCR 2015 for 
variation will not apply on this occasion.          
 

9.2.6 SP support the recommendation to approve this variation in accordance with 
CSO’s 18.03.1,18.03.3 & 2.01(d) 

 
 

9.3 Legal 
 
9.3.1 The Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) was consulted in 

the preparation of the report. 
 
9.3.2 Pursuant to the provisions Council’s CSOs 18.03.3 and 2.01(d), Cabinet may 

approve the variation of a contract with an aggregate value of £500,000 or 
more and as such Cabinet has power to approve the recommendation sought 
in paragraph 3 of the report. 

 
9.3.3 Further to paragraph 9.3.2 above, and pursuant to the provisions of the 

Council’s CSO 0.08, a decision reserved for Cabinet may be taken by a 
Cabinet Member with the agreement of the Leader and as such the 
recommendation in paragraph 3.1 of the report requesting Cabinet Member 
for Housing & Planning and Deputy Leader to approve the recommendations 
in the report is in line with the provisions of the Council’s CSO so long as the 
Cabinet Member is taking the decision with the agreement of the Leader. 

 
9.3.4 The contract to be varied is a works contract and the value of the contract 

including the variation is below the threshold for works contract and as such 
the provisions of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 is not applicable. 

Page 5



 
9.3.5 The Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) see no legal 

reasons preventing the approval of the recommendations in the report. 
 

 
10.    Equality 
 

There is no change to the equality impact as stated in the original award 
reports. 

 
1. Use of Appendices 

None 
 

2. Background papers  
Original award reports 

 
 
 

 

Page 6



Document is exempt

Page 7 Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Variation of contracts for the delivery of fire safety works
	8 EXEMPT Variation of contracts for the delivery of fire safety works

